Public Document Pack

AGENDA
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
BUSINESS PANEL
Date:

TUESDAY, 28 JANUARY 2020 at 7.05 pm

Committee Room 2
Civic Suite
Lewisham Town Hall
London SE6 4RU
Enquiries to:
Jasmine Kassim
Telephone:
0208 314 8577 (direct line)
Email:
Jasmine.Kassim@lewisham.gov.uk
MEMBERS
Councillor Bill Brown
Councillor Sakina Sheikh
Councillor Peter Bernards
Councillor Juliet Campbell
Councillor Patrick Codd
Councillor Liam Curran
Councillor Jim Mallory
Councillor Joan Millbank
Councillor John Muldoon
Councillor Luke Sorba

Chair of Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Vice Chair of Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Chair of Housing Select Committee
Chair of Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee
Labour Group Representative
Chair of Sustainable Development Select Committee
Chair of Public Accounts Select Committee
Labour Group Representative
Chair of Healthier Communities Select Committee
Chair Children and Young People Select Committee

L
L
L
L
L
L
L
L
L
L

Members are summoned to attend this meeting
Kim Wright
Chief Executive
Lewisham Town Hall
Catford
London SE6 4RU
Date: Monday, 20 January 2020

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some
business in private. Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request.

ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA
Item
No

Page
No.s

1.

Minutes

1 - 11

2.

Declarations of Interests

12 - 16

3.

Outstanding Scrutiny Matters

17 - 18

4.

Notification of Late and Urgent Items

19 - 20

5.

Response to Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel on Equality Issues

21 - 38

6.

Report-Back on Call-In result on the "Re-Commissioning of buildingbased day Services for Older Adults"

39

7.

Open Item(s) - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 15 January 2020
Summary of decisions that took place at open session.
Overview and Scrutiny Select Committees Work Programmes - 20192020

40 - 46

8.

9.
10.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
Summary of items considered at the closed meeting.
Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet on 15 January 2020

47 - 48

49
50 - 54

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to
consider some business in private. Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request.

Agenda Item 1

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel

Minutes
Date: 28 January 2020
Key decision: n/a
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to note and confirm Minutes

Recommendation
It is recommended that the minutes of that part of the meeting of the Overview and
Scrutiny Business Panel which was open to the press and public, held on
3 December 2019 be confirmed and signed.

Page 1

Public Document Pack

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
BUSINESS PANEL
Tuesday, 3 December 2019 at 7.05 pm

PRESENT: Councillors Bill Brown, Sakina Sheikh, Peter Bernards, Jim Mallory,
Joan Millbank and Luke Sorba
IN ATTENDNCE:
Councillor Chris Barnham, Cabinet Member for School Performance and Children’s
Services.
OFFICERS:
Director of Joint Commissioning & Early Help, Service Manager (Children & Young
People Joint Commissioning, Overview and Scrutiny Manager, Head of Business and
Committee, and Senior Committee Officer.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Juliet Campbell and Councillor
John Muldoon.
260. Minutes
RESOLVED that the minutes of the open meeting held on 12 November 2019 be
confirmed as a correct record.
261. Declarations of Interests
None received.
262. Notification of Late and Urgent Items
RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
263. Open Item(s) - Decision by Mayor and Cabinet on 20 November 2019
RESOLVED that the report be noted.
264. Overview and Scrutiny Select Committees Work Programmes - 2019-2020
The Scrutiny Manager gave an oral update report in relation to the Overview and
Select Committees’ work for 2019-2020.
Chairs of Select Committees were invited to provide their own oral updates on in
relation to their respective Committee’s work.
The Panel noted that in terms of scrutiny review, work was underway to finalise
proposal on changes to the current structure, and that Members would be
consulted prior to recommending it to the Local Democracy Working Group in
January 2020. It was recognised that the proposal would subsequently be

Page 2

considered at full Council for approval prior to inclusion into the Constitution after
the Annual Meeting in 2020.
In response to questions about in-depth reviews, the Scrutiny Manager provided
the following updates:


Housing Select Committee
Work was underway to conclude the review into residents’ engagement.
The evidence to be collated would analysed and submitted to the next
meeting of the Committee, in order to allow recommendations to be
formulated by Members.



Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee
The timetable for reviewing equalities had to be extended because of the
restrictions in place during the pre-election period. Thus, some of the more
active community engagement work had to be postponed. Notwithstanding
that, evidence gathering was continuing.



Sustainable Development Select Committee
Review into parks management was concluding, following visits to a
number of parks across the Borough. It was confirmed that the final report
was being drafted.

265. Exclusion of the Press and Public
RESOLVED that the report be noted.
266. Decisions made by Mayor and Cabinet on 20 November 2019
Early Help Support Services Review and Permission
The Chair, of the Panel, Councillor Bill Brown, announced that the meeting was in
“closed” session.
The meeting noted that the Chair had received a request for the Panel to consider
a decision taken by the Mayor and Cabinet on 20 November 2019 in relation to
“Early Help Support Services Review and Permission”.
The Chair stated that Councillor Chris Barnham, Cabinet Member for School
Performance and Children’s Services was in attendance, together with the Director
of Joint Commissioning & Early Help, and the Service Manager (Children & Young
People Joint Commissioning.
Councillor Chris Barnham advised the Panel that the current review on ‘early help’
was necessary to ensure efficiency in service delivery. The Cabinet Member
stated that it be helpful to the Panel if Officers set the context of the proposals
upon which the decision by the Mayor and Cabinet was based.
The Panel received a presentation by Officers about the proposals considered by
the Mayor and Cabinet prior to the decision on “Early Help Support Services
Review and Permission”. The Officers’ presentation and summary notes are

Page2 3

attached to these Minutes as an Annex, the details of which can be accessed by
virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972.
RESOLVED that the report be noted.
Then meeting closed at 7.47pm.

Chair

Page34

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 5

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 6

Agenda Item 2

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel

Declaration of Interest
Date: 28 January 2020
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item of the
agenda

1

Personal interests
There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member
Code of Conduct :(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests
(2) Other registerable interests
(3) Non-registerable interests

2

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:-

(a)

Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or
gain

(b)

Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than
by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial
benefit from a Trade Union).

(c)

Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they
are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods,
services or works.
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\5\ai00024579\$vs43xgoo.doc

Page 12

(d)

Beneficial interests in land in the borough.

(e)

Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more.

(f)

Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of
which they have a beneficial interest.

(g)

Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:(a)

that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land
in the borough; and

(b)

either
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of
the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued
share capital of that class.

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.
(3)

Other registerable interests
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register
the following interests:-

(4)

(a)

Membership or position of control or management in a body to which
you were appointed or nominated by the Council

(b)

Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to
charitable purposes , or whose principal purposes include the influence
of public opinion or policy, including any political party

(c)

Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an
estimated value of at least £25

Non registerable interests
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be
likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close
associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area
generally, but which is not required to be registered in the Register of
Members’ Interests (for example a matter concerning the closure of a school
at which a Member’s child attends).
d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\5\ai00024579\$vs43xgoo.doc

Page 13

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\5\ai00024579\$vs43xgoo.doc

Page 14

(5)

(6)

Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation
(a)

Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are
present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any
event before the matter is considered. The declaration will be recorded
in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary
interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter
and withdraw from the room before it is considered. They must not
seek improperly to influence the decision in any way. Failure to
declare such an interest which has not already been entered in the
Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where such an
interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a
fine of up to £5000

(b)

Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event
before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room,
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless
paragraph (c) below applies.

(c)

Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the
member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to
influence the outcome improperly.

(d)

If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a
member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would
affect those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to
the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a
registerable interest.

(e)

Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s
personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek
the advice of the Monitoring Officer.

Sensitive information
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk
of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such
interest need not be registered. Members with such an interest are referred to
the Code and advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance.

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\5\ai00024579\$vs43xgoo.doc

Page 15

(7)

Exempt categories
There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing
so. These include:(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the
matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears
exception)
School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor
unless the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or
of which you are a governor;
Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt
Allowances, payment or indemnity for members
Ceremonial honours for members
Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception)

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\7\5\ai00024579\$vs43xgoo.doc

Page 16

Agenda Item 3

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel
Outstanding Scrutiny Matters
Date: 28 January 2020
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to note report on items previously reported to the
Mayor & Cabinet for response by directorates, and to indicate
the likely future reporting date.

1.

Recommendation
That the reporting date of the items shown in the table below be noted.
Report Title

Responding
Author

Scheduled
Reporting
Date

Slippage
since last
report

ED HRE

Date
Considered
by Mayor &
Cabinet
10 July 2019

Comments of
Sustainable
Developemnt
Select Committee
– on response to
referrals on Fire
Safety
Safer Stronger
Communities
Select Committee
referral on budget
cuts
Sustainable
Development

5 February
2020

Yes

ED
Community

10 October
2019

5 February
2020

Yes

ED
Community

30 October
2019

5 Febraury
2020

Yes

Page 17

Select Committee
Employment
Training and
Business Support
Sustainable
Development
Select Committee
- Pubs
Safer Stronger
Communities –
Food Poverty
Healthier
Communities
Select Committee
– Adult
Safeguarding
Sustainable
Development
Select Committee
- Cycling
Sustainable
Development
Select Committee
- Parking

ED HRE

20 November
2019

11 March
2020

No

ED
Community

20 November
2019

11 March
2020

No

ED
Community

11 December
2019

11 March
2020

No

ED HRE

15 January
2020

25 March
2020

No

ED HRE

15 January
2020

25 March
2020

No

BACKGROUND PAPERS and AUTHOR
Mayor & Cabinet minutes 10 July, 10 October, 20 November, 11 December
2019 & 15 January 2020 available from Kevin Flaherty 0208 3149327.
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=139&Year=
0

Page 18

Agenda Item 4

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel
Notification of Late and Urgent Items
Date: 28 January 2020
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Scrutiny/Business and Committee

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to note reasons for late / urgent items

Report Title

Author

Lewisham
Hospital winter
resilience

Lewisham and Report relates to schemes
Greenwich
that have either started or
NHS Trust
are due to start imminently

Update on
ED
Integration with Community
NHS and the
Services
creation of a
Borough
Based Board

Lewisham
Housing

Rachel Dunn,
Strategic

Reasons Stated for
Urgency

Responsible
Committee and
Date
Healthier
Communities Select
Committee
2 December 2019
Mayor & Cabinet
December 11 2019

The report was not
available for dispatch on
Tuesday 3 December 2019
due to a delay in clarifying
the final legal details
pertaining to the
development of the
Borough Based Board.
The report cannot wait until
the next meeting due to
the need to progress
staffing arrangements as
set out in the report.
In order for it to be
Housing Select
considered by the
Committee

Page 19

Strategy
Housing and
mental health
review update
Resident
engagement in
housing
development

Housing

committee before it goes to
M&C
Rachel Dunn, In order for the committee
Strategic
to be able to complete all
Housing
of the business in its
annual work programme
John Bardens, In order for the committee
Scrutiny
to be able to finish its inManager
depth review within the
municipal year

Page 20

16 December 2019
Housing Select
Committee
16 December 2019
Housing Select
Committee
16 December 2019

Agenda Item 5

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel

Response to Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel on Equality
Issues
Date: 28 January 2020
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to note recommendations by the Mayor and Cabinet on
equalities implications in reports

1.

Recommendation
To note recommendations made by the Mayor and Cabinet on 10 October 2019 in
response to comments by the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel on equalities
implications in reports.

2.

Background

2.1

At its meeting on 21 May 2019, Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Business
Panel made requests to the Mayor and Cabinet as follows:
‘… that Mayor and Cabinet be requested to direct officers to ensure
that:
i.

Equalities and the issues surrounding it are addressed in reports
as part of contract compliance.

ii.

Equalities implications become an explicit part of the decision
making process.

iii.

All reports to explicitly include equalities implications or an
equalities impact assessment, and evidence that the equalities
impact has been considered at every step of the decision

Page 21

making process (at the beginning, throughout the duration and
at the end).
iv.

Looking beyond the Equalities Act; Class should also be
included as part of equalities implications.’

3.

Mayor and Cabinet Response

3.1

Having considered the officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet
Member for Community Sector, Councillor Jonathan Slater, the Mayor and
Cabinet:

Endorsed the officer comments as set out in the report

Noted the report considered by the Safer, Stronger Communities
Select Committee on 9 October 2019

Noted the comments of the Safer, Stronger Communities
reserving the right to make further referrals

Background Papers
Response to comments by the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel on
equality implications in reports - attached

Page 22

MAYOR AND CABINET
Report Title
Key Decision

Response to comments by the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel
on equalities implications in reports
No
Item No.

Ward

Borough wide

Contributors

Head of Law, Director of Policy and Governance,
Strategic Procurement and Commercial Services Manager
Part 1
Date: 10 October 2019

Class

Purpose of Report
To consider and respond to matters raised by the Overview & Scrutiny Business
Panel (OSBP) on 21st May 2019.
1 Overview & Scrutiny Business Panel comments
On 21st May 2019 the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel resolved:
‘… that Mayor and Cabinet be requested to direct officers to ensure that:

2

i.

Equalities and the issues surrounding it are addressed as part of
contract compliance.

ii.

Equalities implications become an explicit part of the decision
making process.

iii.

All reports to explicitly include equalities implications or an
equalities impact assessment, and evidence that the equalities
impact has been considered at every step of the decision making
process (at the beginning, throughout the duration and at the end).

iv.

Looking beyond the Equalities Act; Class should also be included
as part of equalities implications.’

Recommendations
It is recommended that Mayor and Cabinet:
i. Note officer comments as set out in this report;
ii. Note the report considered by the Safer, Stronger Communities Select
Committee (SSCSC) on 9th October 2019 and the comments of the Safer,
Stronger Communities Select Committee at that meeting; and

Page 23

iii. Consider whether to provide a response to the Business Panel in line with
those comments.
3

Responses to comments by the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel
3.1 Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel have requested that Mayor and
Cabinet consider the matters set out in paragraph 1. This paper contains
the response to those matters, for consideration by Mayor and Cabinet.
3.2 Mayor and Cabinet are asked to note that the Safer, Stronger Communities
Select Committee is carrying out an In-depth Review of Equalities in
Lewisham. At its meeting on 9th October 2019 that committee considered
a paper (attached at Appendix 1) on these issues:
1. How is Lewisham Council meeting its equalities obligations under
the 2010 Equalities Act and Public Sector Equality Duty?
2. What is the Council’s Comprehensive Equalities Scheme and how
successfully is it embedded in decision-making and policy and
strategy development?
3. How else is equalities embedded across the Council including
Equality Analysis Assessments and Equalities implications in
committee reports?
4. What is the importance of socio-economic inequality and income
deprivation? How can the Council promote socio-economic
equality?
5. How does the Council ensure equalities are embedded in the
commissioning process for third party organisations that deliver
services?
3.3 The issues considered by the Safer, Stronger Communities Select
Committee therefore overlap with the matters raised by the Business
Panel. Table 1 below presents a comparison of the questions raised by
SSCSC, and those raised by OSBP.
Table 1

OSBP referrals i – iv
(see 1 above)
i. Equalities and the issues
surrounding it are
addressed as part of
contract compliance.

Does SSCSC questions 1 – 5 address this?
(see 3.2 above)
SSCSC Question 5 addresses same issue as that
raised in OSBP referral (i), being the embedding of
equalities into the commissioning process.

OSBP referral (i) further asks specifically for
consideration of how this addressed throughout the
contract period.
ii. Equalities implications
SSCSC Question 3 addresses same issue as that in
become an explicit part of OSBP referral (ii) – consideration of equalities in
the decision making
reports.

Page 24

process.
OSBP referral (i) also asks specifically for equalities
implications to become an ‘explicit’ part of decision
making.
iii. All reports to explicitly
include equalities
implications or an
equalities impact
assessment, and
evidence that the
equalities impact has
been considered at every
step of the decision
making process (at the
beginning, throughout the
duration and at the end).

See above, in relation to SSCSC Questions 2 and 3;
these address the same issue.

iv. Looking beyond the
Equalities Act; Class
should also be included
as part of equalities
implications.

SSCS Question 4 addresses same issue as that in
OSBP referral (iv) – consideration of socio-economic
inequality and income deprivation.

OSBP referral (iii) also refers specifically for evidence
that equalities implications have ‘been considered at
every step of the decision making process’.

3.4 A verbal update or supplementary paper will be presented at the Mayor and
Cabinet meeting to inform Mayor and Cabinet of the comments made by the
Safer, Stronger Communities Select Committee which are relevant to the
matters raised by the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel, so that Mayor
and Cabinet can take those into account.
3.5 It is proposed that Mayor and Cabinet approve the actions or responses
proposed in Table 2 below, subject to any changes arising from
consideration of the comments made by the Safer, Stronger Communities
Select Committee. If there are any changes needed, these will be
addressed in the verbal update or supplementary paper.
Table 2
OSBP referrals i – iv
(see 1 above)
i. Equalities and the issues
surrounding it are
addressed as part of
contract compliance.

Proposal for action or response
The paper to be considered by the Safer, Stronger
Communities Select Committee clearly describes the
embedding of equalities into the commissioning
process and how this forms part of the contractual
terms of contracts with third parties. Post procurement
and as part of the contract management function
services require regular compliance and performance
reporting from contractors which would enable the

Page 25

identification of equalities issues..
ii. Equalities implications
become an explicit part of
the decision making
process.

SSCSC Question 3 addresses same issue as that in
OSBP referral (ii) – consideration of equalities in
reports.
Officers could be asked to pick up that issue within the
SSCSC response, or if that response does not deal
with that issue to prepare a separate response for initial
consideration by SSCSC as part of their review with
referral back to OSBP.

iii. All reports to explicitly
include equalities
implications or an
equalities impact
assessment, and
evidence that the
equalities impact has
been considered at every
step of the decision
making process (at the
beginning, throughout the
duration and at the end).

Officers could be asked to pick up that issue within the
SSCSC response, or if that response does not deal
with that issue to prepare a separate response for initial
consideration by SSCSC as part of their review with
referral back to OSBP.

iv. Looking beyond the
Equalities Act; Class
should also be included
as part of equalities
implications.

Socio-economic status is not a ‘protected characteristic’
under the Equality Act and therefore there is no legal
obligation to include when reporting. However the
SSCSC Question 4 addresses same issues and clearly
describes the actions being taken to address socioeconomic inequality.

4

Financial Implications
None.

5 Legal Implications
None except as set out in the report, and in the equalities implications
below.
6 Crime and Disorder Implications
None
7 Equalities Implications
7.1

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a public sector equality duty
(the equality duty or the duty). It covers the following protected

Page 26

characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and
sexual orientation.
7.2

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due
regard to the need to: eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act.



advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.
foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

7.3

It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination,
harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct, or to promote
equality of opportunity or foster good relations between persons who
share a protected characteristic and those who do not.

7.4

It is a duty to have due regard to the need to achieve the goals listed in
the paragraph above.

7.5

The weight to be attached to the duty will be dependent on the nature of
the decision and the circumstances in which it is made. This is a matter
for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality.
The Mayor must understand the impact or likely impact of the decision on
those with protected characteristics who are potentially affected by the
7decision. The extent of the duty will necessarily vary from case to case
and due regard is such regard as is appropriate in all the circumstances.

7.6

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has issued Technical
Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance
entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations
Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must have regard to the
Statutory Code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn to
Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical
Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty.
This includes steps that are legally required, as well as
recommended actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but
nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without
compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and
the technical guidance can be found at:
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-codespractice

8 Environmental Implications
None
9 Conclusion

Page 27

This report sets out the matters to be considered by Mayor and Cabinet
with regard to the matter referred for consideration by Overview and
Scrutiny Business Panel, so that Mayor and Cabinet can decide whether to
provide a response to the Overview & Scrutiny Business Panel in line with
those comments.

Page 28

APPENDIX 1
Safer, Stronger Communities Select Committee Paper on In-depth
Review of Equalities in Lewisham considered 9th October 2019

Page 29

APPENDIX 1

Safer, Stronger Communities Select Committee
Report Title

In-depth Review of Equalities in Lewisham

Contributors

Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration

Item

Class

Part 1 (Open)

Date

9 October 2019

Introduction
1. This report provides evidence to inform the Safer, Stronger Communities Select
Committee review of equalities in Lewisham. A summary of responses to various
questions asked by the Committee, are set out further on in this report.

Recommendation
2. The Committee is invited to:
i)
ii)

Note the contents of this report; and
Consider the responses to questions raised by the Committee’s In-depth Review,
set out at paragraphs 8 to 37

Background and context
3. Lewisham is a borough of more than 303,000 residents of which children and young
people make up one in four and older people aged over 65 about one in ten of the
population. Seven in ten Lewisham residents are of working age (16-64).
4. In terms of ethnicity, about 54 per cent of the population is white, whilst 46 per cent is
of Black and Minority Ethnic heritage. Some 15 per cent of Lewisham residents describe
themselves as disabled and about a third describe themselves as having a faith.
Estimates vary on the proportion of the population who identify as LGBT, but it could be
as high as one in ten.
5. In addition to its demographic diversity, Lewisham is economically diverse. Nearly one
in four residents are earning below the London Living Wage and just over one in ten
households are those in which no-one has ever worked. Nationally, Lewisham ranks 19th
out of 326 local authorities (1 equals high), with respect to income deprivation affecting
both children and adults and 80th out of 326 against the measure of employment
deprivation.
6. An example of the borough’s geo-spatial diversity can be seen in the higher
concentrations of predominately white and older residents who make their home in the

Page 30

south of the borough, compared to the higher concentrations of younger and BAME
residents who reside in the north of the borough.

Response to questions
7. This section of the report attempts to address the specific questions presented by the
Committee’s In-depth Review. A summary of responses in each instance, is set out under
the sub-headers below.

a. How is Lewisham Council meeting its equalities obligations under the
2010 Equalities Act and Public Sector Equality Duty?
8. The Public Sector Equality Duty is a duty under the Equalities Act 2010. It requires public
bodies in the exercise of their functions to have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination between those with a ‘protected characteristic’ (as defined by the Act)
and other people, to advance equality of opportunity between those with and without a
protected characteristic, and to foster good relations between different people when
carrying out their activities.
9. The provisions of the Duty do not preclude public bodies from making decisions that
could adversely impact groups of individuals who have a protected characteristic nor, in
limited circumstances, from making decisions to reduce disadvantage by taking positive
action in relation to a protected group. However, public bodies must demonstrate that
they have taken reasonable steps to acquire relevant information and weigh up relevant
factors before reaching decisions. In the event that impacts of decisions are likely to be
negative, where possible, public bodies should describe actions that will be taken or
have been considered to moderate those impacts on protected groups.
10. Where major changes to policy, strategy and service delivery are required or where
major budget decisions are being made, it is expected that officers undertake equality
analysis assessments to model the likely impact of such changes on residents and service
users. The above assessments will demonstrate how evidence has been weighed and
how various factors considered in the development of recommendations for decisionmaking.
11. In policy terms the Council has also sought to embrace a wide definition of equality. This
definition recognises the needs and aspirations of groups such as refugees, asylum
seekers, those who do not speak English as a first Language and European Union
nationals living in the borough, who face specific challenges as a result of Brexit. The
point being made here is the Council has taken active steps to adopt an approach to
equality that measures success in terms of its commitment to public welfare, rather than
simple compliance with statute.
12. With regard to the above, the main challenge for the Council has been the need to
ensure that it has access to data across the range of equality groups. This continues to
be a challenge for some protected characteristics where the availability of data relies

Page 31

upon self-declaration and the issue of discrimination is a barrier for such declarations to
be made in the first place.
13. Part of the challenge that the Council faces with regard to gathering diversity data, is
that there must always be a clear business case for it and once collected, it must be used
for the purpose for which it was collected in the first place. The Council’s approach to
data collection must always be proportionate. Therefore, diversity data is not collected
as a default.
14. There is also the matter of personal choice. Residents and services users are not
mandated to share their personal information with the local authority. That said, it is
recognised that the Council could and should do more to encourage residents to share
such information. In particular, by demonstrating much more clearly how diversity
information has been used in the past, to improve services.
15. The desire to ensure that the above process is managed as effectively as possible has led
the Executive Management Team to ask Directorate Management Teams to play a much
greater role in providing assurance across their areas of responsibility. As part of this
directorates are taking a strategic view of data gathering based on an assessment of
longer term issues and challenges. This will help ensure that the approach to data
collection is not just operationally driven.

b. What is the Council’s Comprehensive Equalities Scheme and how
successfully is it embedded in decision-making and policy and strategy
development?
16. The Comprehensive Equalities Scheme is an assurance framework for evaluating and
assessing how the Council addresses and promotes equality and fairness through the
performance of functions and the provision of services. The existing Comprehensive
Equalities Scheme is comprised of the following five objectives:






Tackle, victimisation, discrimination and harassment
Improve access to services
Close the gap in outcomes for our citizens
Increase mutual understanding and respect, within and between communities
Increase participation and engagement

17. The above-mentioned objectives are the prism, through which officers and members can
assess the rationale and impact of recommendations as they are being developed and
before they are agreed. By applying this lens, the Council is better able to understand
the impact that its decisions might have on service users and where possible, take
reasonable steps to mitigate any negative impacts.
18. The Comprehensive Equalities Scheme is not a strategy. As such, it does not set strategic
goals, nor is it accompanied by an action plan and resources to effect delivery. The idea
is that the underpinning objectives of the Scheme should instead be reflected in the

Page 32

strategies, plans and business systems through which the Council delivers and where
resources are already invested.
19. The rationale for a strategic framework for equalities rather than a strategy is based on
the presumption that it is a much more effective way to ensure that all Council business
systems and processes have equalities at their core. This would not be the case if
equalities consideration were an adjunct sitting in a separate plan – or for that matter in
nine separate plans reflecting each of the nine characteristics protected under the
Equality Act.
20. It is because the Comprehensive Equalities Scheme is a strategic framework and not a
strategy that its impact is measured in terms of business assurance and confidence,
rather than targets achieved or deadlines met. A particular measure of business
assurance is the extent to which, when scrutinising information presented by officers,
elected members can satisfy themselves that consideration of equality objectives have
been factored into relevant impact assessments and report recommendations.
21. A good recent example of how the Comprehensive Equalities Scheme framework has
been applied is with respect to the development of the Children and Young People’s
Plan 2019-22. The Plan addresses all five Comprehensive Equalities Scheme objectives
and reflects these in its ambition, intent and success measures. The Plan was adopted by
Full Council in July 2019.
22. Another strategy, in development, that will incorporate the above approach is the
Council’s Housing Supply Strategy. The Strategy will be using equality data as a lens to
inform how the Council builds, buys and acquires properties as well as what partners
build and develop in the borough.
23. As elsewhere, there is more that can and should be done to improve the effectiveness of
the above approach. Specifically, the systematic and routine application of the
Comprehensive Equalities Scheme, as an assurance framework, is not yet custom and
practice across the organisation.

c. How else is equalities embedded across the Council including Equality
Analysis Assessments and Equalities implications in committee reports?
24. There are a wide range of ways in which equalities is embedded across Council business
systems. Set out below, are some examples of this.


Strategy development – various strategies reflect the Council’s broader commitment
to equality and to the needs of various protected characteristics. Examples of these
include: the Corporate Strategy, Safer Lewisham Plan, Children and Young People’s
Plan, Mental Health and Well-being Strategy and Housing Strategy;



Strategic needs analyses – the Council publishes various strategic needs analyses
which are used to information strategic planning, funding bids and service planning.
Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs) that have been published in the last 18

Page 33

months include those on ‘parenting’ and ‘maternal mental health’. JSNAs that are
scheduled for publication in the next twelve months include those for ‘LGBT+
health’, ‘children and young people self-harm’ and ‘transitions preparing for
adulthood’;


Service planning process – guidance published each year requires directorates to
ensure that equality objectives and priorities are incorporated in service planning.
This is to help ensure that service plans are effective delivery vehicles for equality
objectives;



Public consultation and engagement - some 50 public consultations are undertaken
each year. As part of this, the Council invites survey respondents to complete a
diversity questionnaire. The purpose of the questionnaire is to better understand
who is responding to surveys and how representative survey responses are;



Budget savings – each year the Council undertakes a budget savings process. As part
of this, officers are required to assess the likely impact of savings proposals for all
protected characteristics (where such impacts are known or anticipated). Analysis of
this assessment is presented for members’ scrutiny and published as part of the
Budget Report;



Performance reporting – performance reports across the Council demonstrate how
equalities is embedded. Reports include data relevant to a number of protected
characteristics including age, gender, disability and race;



Service eligibility assessments – services such as housing, children’s and adults social
care undertake standard statutory assessments which provide a rich source of
equalities data regarding those eligible to access their services;



Service design – the Council designs services in a way that is responsive to the needs
of specific communities and groups in the borough. An example of how this works is
being undertaken for the LGBT+ community and is set out in the response to the Indepth Review of Services to the LGBT+ Community;



Training – the Director of Law has delivered Equality Act training for Executive
Directors and Service Directors. The purpose of the training is to ensure that senior
Council managers are fully conversant with their roles and responsibilities as it
relates to the legislation. Other training which is being commissioned by the Council
includes that for ‘Unconscious Bias’.



Committee reports - Where reports are prepared for decision making by committee
– for example, Mayor and Cabinet – or by other decision makers, equalities issues
will be considered. There is a section in reports for the insertion of consideration of
the equalities implications of the decision, and the legal implications section of the
report will include information for the decision maker about the legal issues
involved.

Page 34

25. It is important to note that the above list is by no means exhaustive. However, it is
intended to provide reassurance to members that the Council undertakes a wide range
of work to assure itself that statutory and policy obligations regarding equality are being
met. That said, it is recognised that more can be done to ensure that as well as being
embedded in policy and procedure, consideration of equalities is part of organisational
custom and practice.

d. What is the importance of socio-economic inequality and income
deprivation? How can the Council promote socio-economic equality?
26. As set out on the Council’s website, the Comprehensive Equality Scheme sets out our
aspiration to take all reasonable steps to ensure that every citizen is able to do the best
for themselves and for others. This will involve the promotion of social economic and
environmental well-being for all. As such, an approach to equality that does not address
aspirations for advancement for those on the lowest incomes and living in the most
deprived communities is will fall short of the Council’s best expectations for its
residents.
27. Socio-economic status is not a ‘protected characteristic’ under the Equality Act.
However socio-economic inequality is likely to be part of the lived experiences of a wide
range of people who have a protected characteristic. For example it is likely that groups
including women, lone parents with dependent children, older people, disabled
residents and ethnic minorities will face specific challenges which limit their economic
potential. Where that issue is a relevant consideration for a particular decision, it can
therefore be taken into account.
28. For the Council, it is particularly important to focus on fairness and equity in the
performance of roles and discharge of functions. The fact is that, whilst equality is about
doing the best for everyone, fairness is about targeting those whose circumstances
make them most vulnerable. As such, within the broader definition of what could be
termed ‘equality’ it is incumbent upon the Council to ensure that it focuses effort and
resources on those in the greatest need.
29. Examples of actions that the Council takes and should continue to take, which will have
the effect of promoting socio-economic fairness include the following:


Increase the number of Living Wage employers in the borough and ensure that
service providers contracted by the Council, pay the London Living Wage;



Encourage take up of free childcare places to help parents who want to return into
the labour market to be able to do so;



Increase take up of apprenticeships and particularly look to support young people
from the most disadvantaged backgrounds;

Page 35



Improve attainment at Lewisham secondary schools, but particularly for those pupils
who performs least well compared to other pupils such as afro-Caribbean pupils and
white pupils in receipt of free school meals;



Target early help to families that might be at risk, which would help to prevent the
avoidable escalation of need and the risk that children may need to be taken into
care;



Expand the Council’s business growth programme for small businesses and support
more start up business to grow and become sustainable;



Continue to monitor the gender pay gap to ensure that women do not suffer pay
discrimination.

e. How does the Council ensure equalities are embedded in the
commissioning process for third party organisations that deliver
services?
30. The Council ensures that equalities are embedded in the commissioning process at all
stages and in a number of ways.
31. Initially equalities will be considered as part of the permission to procure reports and
therefore the early scoping of what it is the Council wishes to procure and how it wants
these goods, works and/or services to be delivered to assist in the achievement of the
Corporate Strategy. All procurements require approval prior to commencement and the
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules contained within section I of the Constitution and
the Schemes of Delegation clearly define the approval route for procurement of goods,
works and services, depending primarily on value.
32. It is expected that an initial scope of services be appended to the permission report and
these reports are required to follow the standard report template which includes a
section which considers equalities impacts. The specification itself always clearly
articulates the service need and the impact this may have on those with protected
characteristics and how the goods, works, and/or services to be provided are expected
to mitigate or protect these. This shapes the service itself.
33. Decision reports will include a ‘legal implications’ section which – as with other reports will contain information for the decision maker about the legal issues involved in
considering equalities issues.
34. Once permission to procure has been given officers work with the procurement and
legal services teams to draft the tender documentation. In addition to the specification
this will include the Invitation to Tender document, the Method Statements required,
the draft Terms and Conditions of contract, and the Council’s Sustainable Procurement
Code of Practice. Within the method statement templates there is a standard method
statement on equality and diversity ensuring that all procurements include an explicit
question on tis unless there is an agreed deviation from standard form.

Page 36

35. Once live the third party organisations will need to respond to the tender and their
approach and commitment to equality and diversity will implicitly tested through their
responses on how they will provide the goods, works, and/or services and how this
service delivery meet our requirements with regards to equalities.
36. As part of the tender response third party organisations will also need to agree the

Council’s terms and conditions for the contract. These include a requirement on
contractors to comply with the Council’s Sustainable Procurement Code of Practice
which contains overarching obligations requiring all contractors to consider and address
equalities by requiring the following:

“Contractors, suppliers and service providers must follow best practice and comply with
all legislation in relation to equality and diversity and be consistent with Lewisham’s
Comprehensive Equality Scheme (the Council’s key equality policy document).
Contractors, suppliers and service providers will provide the Council on request with
copies of:





Instructions to those concerned with recruitment, promotion and training.
Equality and diversity policies, procedures and other documents available to
employees, recognised trade unions or other representative groups of
employees.
Recruitment advertisements or other literature.

In order to assist the Council in its objectives under the Equalities Framework for Local
Government (EFLG), contractors, suppliers and service providers must demonstrate that
they have an understanding and commitment to the principles and practice of equality
in the services they provide. They must also regularly review their services and access to
them to ensure they continue to be appropriate and accessible to Lewisham’s diverse
communities.”
37. Finally at the conclusion of every procurement exercise there is the requirement to
obtain approval to award, and, similar to permission reports, all procurement award
reports follow the standard Council template which includes a section on equalities
impact. Again, all reports will include a ‘legal implications’ section which will contain
information for the decision maker about the legal issues involved in considering
equalities issues.

Conclusion
38. As set out above, there are a wide range of ways in which equalities is embedded in
Council systems and processes. However, there is scope to improve further. This reality
is underlined by the fact that Lewisham’s population is increasing in its diversity and
need. Alongside that, the demands of the government’s austerity programme make it all
the more essential that the Council fully understands the effects of its decisions and is
able to focus resources on those in the greatest need.

Page 37

39. Furthermore, by focusing on socio-economic inequality, the Committee has rightly
alighted one of the key determinants of equality ie: how access to and advancement in
the labour market, impacts both life chances and outcomes.

Legal implications
40. None save as set out in the body of this report.

Financial implications
41. There are no direct financial implications from noting the contents of this report.

Crime and disorder implications
42. Section 17 places a duty on partners to do all they can to reasonably prevent crime and
disorder in their area. The level of crime and its impact is influenced by the decisions
and activities taken in the day-to-day of local bodies and organisations. The responsible
authorities are required to provide a range of services in their community from policing,
fire protection, planning, consumer and environmental protection, transport and
highways. They each have a key statutory role in providing these services and, in
carrying out their core activities, can significantly contribute to reducing crime and
improving the quality of life in their area.

Equalities implications
43. The equalities implications are contained in the body of this report.

Page 38

Agenda Item 6

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel
Report-Back on Call-In result on the "Re-Commissioning of building-based day
Services for Older Adults"
Date: 28 January 2020
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to note report-back on call-in result

1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

Members of the Business Panel resolved to call in the Mayor and
Cabinet decision at its meeting on 12 November 2019, in order to
enable Mayor and Cabinet to re-consider appraisal by officers of the
consultation exercise, and reason for Recommendation 2, in view of:
“A clash between the purposes of the report – namely to deal
with the contract for adult day care services provision – and the
wider purpose and use of the Calabash Centre as a venue for
Black and Ethnic Minority residents in Lewisham”.

2.

Call-In Result
The Chair of the Panel, Councillor Bill Brown to provide an oral report
on the result of the decision that was called-in.

Page 39

Agenda Item 7

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel

Decision made by Mayor and Cabinet on 15 January 2020
Date: 28 January 2020
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to consider decisions taken by the Mayor and Cabinet on
15 January 2020 I open session

1.

Recommendation
To consider key decisions taken by the Mayor and Cabinet on 15 January 2020,
which will come in to force on 29 January 2020.

2.

Background

2.1

The Mayor and Cabinet considered the following key decisions on 15 January 2020.

2.2

The notice of the decisions to be made in respect of this report is attached
below

2.3

Under the provisions of Standing Orders Part IV E 14, Members may call in
an executive decision within 7 days. If this report is not called in decisions to
be made will come into force on 29 January 2020:
(i) Achilles Street Estate Regeneration Ballot Results
(ii) Adopting a Residents Charter for Estate Regeneration
(iii) Housing Strategy
(iv) Building for Lewisham part 1
(v) Parking Policy update
(vi) Beckenham Place Park Swimming Concession
(vii) Proposal to Transfer Management of Five Community Centres
(viii) Former Wide Horizon Sites part 1

Page 40

NOTICE OF DECISIONS MADE BY
THE MAYOR & CABINET
The Mayor and Cabinet made the following decisions on January 15 2020. All
recommendations shown were agreed by a 10-0 vote of voting members in
attendance.
Decisions 1 to 11 will become effective on January 29 2020 unless called in
by the Overview & Scrutiny Business Panel on January 28 2020.
1.

Achilles Street Estate Regeneration Ballot Results
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet
Member for Housing, Councillor Paul Bell, the Mayor and Cabinet
agreed that:
(1) the results be noted of the Resident Ballot for Estate Regeneration
on the Achilles Street Estate, where 72.8% of residents who voted,
voted “Yes” with a turnout of 92%.
(2) the Council and Lewisham Homes should now develop the
proposals for regenerating the Achilles Street Estate in line with the
information set out in the Council’s Landlord Offer to residents, that
was agreed by Mayor and Cabinet in September 2019;
(3) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Housing
Regeneration and Environment to carry out a statutory s105
consultation on the proposals for regenerating the Achilles Street
Estate with the results of that consultation being reported back to
Mayor and Cabinet for consideration.
(4) engagement is continuing with residents on the estate as set out;
(5) repairs will continue to take place on the estate, and that Lewisham
Homes are currently working to assess what essential works may be
required should demolition take place as proposed;
(6) new secure lettings be stopped on the Council properties in Azalea
House, Austin House, Fenton House and 363 New Cross Road, and to
use any voids that arise for temporary accommodation for homeless

Page 41

households or other residential uses as identified by the Council’s
housing services; and
(7) a further report be presented setting out the position and
requirements for the residential and commercial land assembly.
2.

Adopting a Residents’ Charter for Estate Regeneration
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet
Member for Housing, Councillor Paul Bell, the Mayor and Cabinet
agreed that:
(1) the responses received from the Residents’ Charter consultation be
noted;
(2) the final principles set out should be adopted as the Residents’
Charter for all residents in Lewisham whose homes will form part of
Council led estate regeneration schemes; and
(3) a final Residents’ Charter document should be created that includes
the agreed principles alongside explanatory text, and authority be
delegated to the Director of Regeneration and Place to work in
conjunction with the Director of Strategy & Communications to approve
the final version.

3.

Draft Housing Strategy 2020 – 2026
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet
Member for Housing, Councillor Paul Bell, the Mayor and Cabinet
agreed that:
(1) the support of the Housing Select Committee on the draft strategy
consultation document be noted,
(2) the key themes, main priorities for action and strategic objectives
for the proposed Housing Strategy 2020-26 contained within the
document at appendix A
(3) an eight week consultation, as detailed, be approved.

4.

Building for Lewisham Programme
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet
Member for Housing, Councillor Paul Bell, the Mayor and Cabinet
agreed that:
(1) the update provided for the Council’s initial housebuilding
programme be noted;

Page 42

(2) Lewisham Homes, in collaboration with officers of the Council, will
consult will local residents, ward councillors, local amenity groups and
other relevant stakeholders about the Council’s intention to redevelop
these sites within the Building for Lewisham Programme;
(3) the scope of the Building for Lewisham Programme be approved;
(4) officers will return to Mayor and Cabinet to agree the addition or
removal of specific schemes to/from the Building for Lewisham
Programme beyond feasibility;
(5) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Housing
Regeneration and Environment to initiate and carry out any s105
consultation required on sites within the Building for Lewisham
programme, at the appropriate time;
(6) the result of the s105 consultation will be referred back to Mayor
and Cabinet for consideration and approval to continue with the
development;
(7) authority be delegated to the Executive Director for Housing
Regeneration and Environment to approve the submission of proposals
for planning permission and discharge of conditions, non-material
amendments and section 73 applications - where applicable - as part of
the programme and authorises Lewisham Homes to act on behalf on
the Council with respect to all of the above, subject to approval of any
s105 consultation required;
(8) the request for feasibility budgets be noted for:
(a) Acquisitions programme (via Lewisham Homes);
(b) Identified sites where some feasibility work has begun (via
Lewisham Homes);
(c) Site identification as part of the Council’s ongoing pipeline;
(9) the risks highlighted with regard to the delivery of this programme
be noted and a report will return to Mayor and Cabinet on a quarterly
basis to monitor progress;
(10) this item is accompanied by a Part 2 report outlining the financial
parameters of the programme as well as requests for additional spend
on rooftop extensions and Canonbie Road;
(11) officers will return to Mayor and Cabinet to approve the allocation
of budgets for the purpose of commencement of building work;
(12) a number of other schemes sit within the programme but will be
the subject of separate Mayor and Cabinet reports.

Page 43

5.

Parking Policy Update: consultation results and
recommendations
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet
Member for Environment & Transport, Councillor Sophie McGeevor,
the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that
(1) the results of the public consultation and recommendations from
SDSC following from the meeting on 4 December 2019, be noted;
(2) the following updates to the Council’s parking policy, included in the
updated Parking Policy document be approved:
i. The introduction of an emissions based charging scheme for parking
permits, as set out in the charging bands proposal in Appendix 4 as
amended at the meeting. A separate £50 surcharge for diesel vehicles
should also be implemented, but diesel vehicles that conform to the
most recent vehicle emissions standards (Euro VI standards or higher)
should be exempted. This exemption standard should be reviewed
annually and revised per the latest research and emissions standards.
Any refunds that need to be issued will incur a £15 administration cost;
ii. To automatically provide ten hours of visitor parking credit annually
free of charge to all households when they purchase at least one paid
annual resident parking permit as detailed in section 6.5 of this report
and to increase the cost of visitor permits as set out in that section and
in Table 1;
Current cost Proposed cost
1 hour £1.40 £1.60*
Book of 10 vouchers £10.00 - £16.00
5 hours £2.80 - £3.20
Daily £5.60 £6.40
Weekly £20.00 - £25.60
*sold as part of a book of 10 permits
iii. To approve the proposal to harmonise the rate for PCNs at the Band
A rate across the borough, as detailed in section 6.6 of this report.
Approval for this will then need to be sought from London Councils;
iv. To provide only mandatory, enforceable disabled parking bays (and
no longer provide advisory disabled parking bays), as detailed in
section 6.7 of this report;
v. To amend the application criteria for disabled bays to new criteria set
out in Appendix 6;
vi. To increase the tariff for pay and display parking to £0.50 for each
15 minute period for both cash and cashless payments as shown in
section 6.8;

Page 44

vii. To rationalise the number of pay and display machines in the
borough as shown in section 6.8; and
viii. To make the minor amendments, as detailed in section 6.11;
ix. Remove the limit on the number of ‘floating car club permits’ issued
to car club operators, with this monitored closely by officers, as set out
in section 6.12.
x. Approve the updated parking policy which incorporates the above
amendments, as presented in Appendix 9.
(3) the responses in sections 6.6, 6.7 and 10 to the views expressed on
Wednesday 4 December 2019 by the Sustainable Development Select
Committee be approved
6.

Beckenham Place Park - Swimming Concession
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet
Member for Environment & Transport, Councillor Sophie McGeevor,
the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that the procurement of a concession
contract for lake activities in Beckenham Place Park with the minimum
criteria outlined be approved.

7.

Proposal to Transfer Management of Five Community Centres to
Lewisham Homes
Having considered an officer report, and a presentation by the Cabinet
Member for Community Sector, Councillor Jonathan Slater, the Mayor
and Cabinet agreed that
(1) the transfer of management responsibility of the five centres listed
be approved as from 1 April 2020, to include the ability for Lewisham
Homes to make decisions on the community use of the centres and
any change to the existing occupational arrangements; and
(2) delegated authority be given to the Executive Director for
Community Services in consultation with the Head of Law for decisions
about the nature and terms of agreement for the proposed transfer of
responsibility.

8.

Disposal of Former Wide Horizons Outdoor Education Sites in
Kent & Wales
Having considered both an open and a confidential officer report, and a
presentation by the Mayor, the Mayor and Cabinet agreed that:
(1) the three sites be declared surplus to the Council’s requirements.

Page 45

(2) the Executive Director for Housing, Regeneration and Environment
be authorised to seek authority to dispose of the three sites from the
Secretary of State for Education;
(3) Subject to that authority being obtained, authority be delegated to
the Executive Director for Housing, Regeneration & Environment to
agree the most appropriate method of disposal, and to dispose of the
sites.

Kim Wright
Chief Executive,
Lewisham Town Hall,
Catford SE6 4RU
January 16 2020

Page 46

Agenda Item 8

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel
Scrutiny Update
Date: 28 January 2020
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive (Director of Law)

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to note and ask questions on the information provided.

1.

Summary

1.1. This provides an update on current scrutiny activity.

2.

Recommendation

2.1. Members are asked to note and ask questions on the information provided.

3.

Scrutiny Review

3.1. A final proposal on changes to the current scrutiny structure is being considered. An oral
update can be provided at the meeting. A proposed new structure will be recommended
to the Local Democracy Working Group in early 2020, before submission to Council for
approval and introduction to the Council constitution from the AGM.
3.2. Officers will provide financial and legal implications in relation to the proposed structure
in due course, to inform decision making.

4.

Select Committees

4.1. The work programmes are progressing and those Select Committees that are carrying
out in-depth reviews are either finalising the collation of evidence via written and oral
submissions, engagement activities and visits; or analysing the evidence received with a
view to submitting a final report and recommendations shortly. All in-depth reviews are
on track to conclude this municipal year.

Page 47

4.2. The Committee Chairs may wish to provide their own oral updates on Select Committee
work.

5.

Report author and contact

5.1. Charlotte Dale, Overview and Scrutiny Manager, charlotte.dale@lewisham.gov.uk, 0208
31 48286

Page 48

Agenda Item 9

Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel

Exclusion of the Press and Public
Date: 28 January 2020
Key decision: No
Class: Part 1
Ward(s) affected: All
Contributors: Chief Executive / Head of Business and Committee

Outline and recommendations
Members are asked to note items that will be considered in closed session

Recommendation
It is recommended that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined
in paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act, as amended by the
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (Amendments)
(England) Regulations 2006:i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

Disposal of former Wide Horizons Sites in Wales and Kent
Permission to Tender the Refugee Resettlement Support Service
Building for Lewisham New Homes Programme
Creekside Acquisition Opportunity

d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\6\8\5\ai00024586\$uuajb4kq.doc

Page 49

Agenda Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 50

